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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

x-

DESTA TJOKRONOLO and JOHN DOE:
CI. 7:71(NEW YORK), on behalfof themselves and

others similarly situated,

Plaintiffs, CLASS ACTION Colvin-mm-0 72 --n

against CV I 4Cre557 7
THE PROCTER & GAMBLE COMPANY JURY TRIAL DEMANDED---.
and PROCTER & GAMBLE
PRODUCTIONS, INC.,

Defendants. F

X AMON Ch.j.
ORENSTEIA,

Plaintiffs, DESTA TJOKRONOLO and JOHN DOE (NEW YORK) (collectively,

"Plaintiffs"), on behalf of themselves and other persons similarly situated, by and through their

undersigned attorneys, as and for their Complaint against Defendants, allege the following based

upon personal knowledge as to themselves and their own actions, and, as to all other matters,

respectfully allege, upon information and belief, as follows (Plaintiffs believe that substantial

evidentiary support will exist for the allegations set forth herein after a reasonable opportunity

for discovery):

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This action seeks redress on a class-wide basis for a deceptive and otherwise

improper business practice that Defendants, The Procter & Gamble Company ("PROCTER &

GAMBLE COMPANY") and Procter & Gamble Productions, Inc. ("PROCTER & GAMBLE

PRODUCTIONS") (collectively, the "Defendants"), engage in with respect to the packaging of

their "Gillette® Odor Shield Invisible Solid, "Old Spice® High Endurance Invisible Solid" and

"Old Spice® Classic" anti-perspirants and deodorants. The Gillette® Odor Shield Invisible

Solid is an anti-perspirant and deodorant available in the Cool Wave fragrance; Old Spice® High
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Endurance Invisible Solid is a line of antiperspirants and deodorants available in Playmaker,

Fresh, Original, Sport, Game Day, and Smooth Blast fragrances; Old Spice® Fresh Classic is a

deodorant stick in Original and Fresh fragrances (collectively, the "Products"). The Products

come in 2.6 ounce (the "2.6 ounce products"), 3.0 ounce (the "3.0 ounce products"), and 3.25

ounce (the "3.25 ounce products") sticks respectively and have non-fimctional slack-fill in

violation of the federal Food Drug & Cosmetic Act ("FDCA") Section 403 (21 U.S.C. 343 (d)),

Section 403(d) (21 U.S.C. 343(d)), the Code of Federal Regulations Title 21 part 100, et. seq.

and New York General Business Code ("NY GBL") 349. The size of the container in

comparison to the actual deodorant stick makes it appear to the reasonable consumer that they

are buying more than what is actually being sold.

2. The 2.6 ounce Product is sold in a container which is approximately 5 'A" in

height and approximately 2 'A" wide. The actual size of the deodorant stick of the 2.6 ounce

Product is approximately 2 1/2" wide and 2 3/4" long. The 3.0 ounce Product is sold in a container

which is approximately 5 5/8" in height and approximately 2 5/8" wide. The actual size of the

deodorant stick of the 3.0 ounce Product is approximately 2 'A" wide and 2 718" long. The 3.25

ounce Product is sold in a container which is approximately 5 3/4" in height and approximately 2

5/8" wide_ The actual size of the deodorant stick of the 3.25 ounce Product is approximately 2

wide and 3 'A" long_ Thus, the size of each of the containers has nearly 3 inches of slack-fill

in height and is designed to give the false impression that there is more product than actually

packaged.

3. The price of the Products is $3.29 each.

4. The size of the container in relation to the volume of the product contained therein

gives the false impression that the consumer is buying more than they are actually receiving.
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5. Plaintiffs and Class members viewed Defendants' misleading Product packaging,

reasonably relied in substantial part on the representations and were thereby deceived in deciding

to purchase the Products for a premium price.

6. Plaintiffs bring this proposed consumer class action on behalf of themselves and

all other persons nationwide, who from the applicable limitations period up to and including the

present (the "Class Period"), purchased for consumption and not resale the Products.

7. During the Class Period, Defendants manufactured, marketed and sold the

Products throughout the United States. Defendants purposefully sold the Products with non-

functional slack-fill.

8. Defendants' actions constitute violations of the federal FDCA Section 403 (21

U.S.C. 343 (d)), Section 403(d) (21 U.S.C. 343(d)), the Code of Federal Regulations Title 21

part 100, et. seq. and New York's Deceptive Acts or Practices NY GBL 349, as well as those

similar deceptive and unfair practices and/or consumer protection laws in other states.

9. Defendants violated statutes enacted in each of the fifty states and the District of

Columbia that are designed to protect consumers against unfair, deceptive, fraudulent and

unconscionable trade and business practices and false advertising. These statutes are:

a. Alabama Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Ala. Statues Ann. 8-19-1, et seq.;
b. Alaska Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Act, Ak. Code 45.50.471,

et seq.;
c. Arizona Consumer Fraud Act, Arizona Revised Statutes, 44-1521, et seq.;
d. Arkansas Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Ark. Code 4-88-101, et seq.;
e. California Consumer Legal Remedies Act, Cal. Civ. Code 1750, et seq., and

California's Unfair Competition Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof Code 17200, et seq.;
f Colorado Consumer Protection Act, Colo. Rev. Stat. 6 1-101, et seq.;
g. Connecticut Unfair Trade Practices Act, Conn. Gen. Stat 42-110a, et seq.;
h. Delaware Deceptive Trade Practices Act, 6 DeI. Code 2511, et seq.;
i. District of Columbia Consumer Protection Procedures Act, D.C. Code 28 3901, et

seq.;
j. Florida Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act, Fla. Stat. Ann. 501.201, et seq.;
k. Georgia Fair Business Practices Act, 10-1-390 et seq.;
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1. Hawaii Unfair and Deceptive Practices Act, Hawaii Revised Statues 480 1, et seq.,
and Hawaii Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Hawaii Revised Statutes

481A-1, et seq.;
m. Idaho Consumer Protection Act, Idaho Code 48-601, et seq.;
n. Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act, 815 ILCS 50511, et

seq.;
o. Indiana Deceptive Consumer Sales Act, Indiana Code Ann. 24-5-0.5-0.1, et seq.;

p. Iowa Consumer Fraud Act, Iowa Code 714.16, et seq.;

q. Kansas Consumer Protection Act, Kan. Stat. Ann 50 626, et seq.;
r. Kentucky Consumer Protection Act, Ky. Rev. Stat. Ann. 367.110, et seq., and the

Kentucky Unfair Trade Practices Act, Ky. Rev. Stat. Ann 365.020, et seq.;
S. Louisiana Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Law, La. Rev. Stat. Ann.

51:1401, et seq.;
t. Maine Unfair Trade Practices Act, 5 Me. Rev. Stat. 205A, et seq„ and Maine

Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Me. Rev_ Stat. Ann. 10, 1211, et seq.,
u. Maryland Consumer Protection Act, Md. Com. Law Code 13-101, et seq.;
v. Massachusetts Unfair and Deceptive Practices Act, Mass. Gen. Laws ch. 93A;
w. Michigan Consumer Protection Act, 445.901, et seq.;
x. Minnesota Prevention of Consumer Fraud Act, Minn. Stat 325F.68, et seq.; and

Minnesota Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Minn. Stat. 325D.43, et seq.;
y. Mississippi Consumer Protection Act, Miss. Code Ann. 75-24-1, et seq.;
z. Missouri Merchandising Practices Act, Mo. Rev. Stat. 407.010, et seq.;
aa. Montana Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Act, Mont. Code §30-14-

101, et seq.;
bb. Nebraska Consumer Protection Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. 59 1601, et seq., and the

Nebraska Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. 87-301, et seq.;
cc. Nevada Trade Regulation and Practices Act, Nev. Rev. Stat. 598.0903, et seq.;
dd. New Hampshire Consumer Protection Act, N.H. Rev_ Stat. 358-A:1, et seq.;
ee. New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act, N.J. Stat. Ann. 56:8 et seq.;
ff. New Mexico Unfair Practices Act, N.M. Stat. Ann. 57 12 I, et seq.;
gg. New York Deceptive Acts and Practices Act, N.Y. Gen. Bus. Law 349, et seq.;
hh. North Dakota Consumer Fraud Act, N.D. Cent. Code 51 15 01, et seq.;
ii. North Carolina Unfair and Deceptive Trade Practices Act, North Carolina General

Statutes 75-1, et seq.;
jj. Ohio Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Ohio Rev. Code. Ann. 4165.01. et seq.;
kk. Oklahoma Consumer Protection Act, Okla. Stat. 15 751, et seq.;
11. Oregon Unfair Trade Practices Act, Rev. Stat 646.605, et seq.;
mm. Pennsylvania Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Law, 73 Penn.

Stat. Ann. 201-1, et seq.;
nn. Rhode Island Unfair Trade Practices And Consumer Protection Act, R.I. Gen. Laws

6-13.1-1, et seq.;
oo. South Carolina Unfair Trade Practices Act, S.C. Code Laws 39-5-10, et seq.;
pp. South Dakota's Deceptive Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Law, S.D.

Codified Laws 37 24 1, et seq.;
qq. Tennessee Trade Practices Act, Tennessee Code Annotated 47-25-101, et seq.;
rr. Texas Stat. Ann. 17.41, et seq., Texas Deceptive Trade Practices Act, et sep.;
ss. Utah Unfair Practices Act, Utah Code Ann_ 13-5-1, et seq.;
it. Vermont Consumer Fraud Act, Vt. Stat. Ann. tit.9, 2451, et seq.;
uu. Virginia Consumer Protection Act, Virginia Code Ann. §§59.1-196, et seq.;
vv. Washington Consumer Fraud Act, Wash. Rev, Code 19.86.010, et seq.;
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ww. West Virginia Consumer Credit and Protection Act, West Virginia Code 46A-6-
101, et seq.;

xx. Wisconsin Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Wis. Stat. 100. 18, et seq.;
yy. Wyoming Consumer Protection Act, Wyoming Stat. Ann. §§40-12-101, et seq.

10. Defendants have deceived Plaintiffs and other consumers nationwide by

mischaracterizing the size of their Products. Defendants have been unjustly enriched as a result

of their conduct. Through these unfair and deceptive practices, Defendants have collected

millions ofdollars from the sale of their Products that they would not have otherwise earned.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

11. The Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1332, because

this is a class action, as defined by 28 U.S.0 1332(d)(1)(B), in which a member of the putative

class is a citizen of a different state than Defendants, and the amount in controversy exceeds the

sum or value of $5,000,000, excluding interest and costs. See 28 U.S.C. 1332(d)(2).

12. The Court has jurisdiction over the federal claims alleged herein pursuant to 28

U.S.0 1331 because it arises under the laws ofthe United States.

13. The Court has jurisdiction over the state law claims because they form part of the

same case or controversy under Article III of the United States Constitution.

14. Alternatively, the Court has jurisdiction over all claims alleged herein pursuant to

28 U.S.0 1332 because the matter in controversy exceeds the sum or value of $75,000 and is

between citizens ofdifferent states.

15. The Court has personal jurisdiction over the Defendants because their Products

are advertised, marketed, distributed and sold throughout the United States; Defendants engaged

in the wrongdoing alleged in this Complaint throughout the United States, including in New

York State; Defendants are authorized to do business in New York State; and Defendants have

sufficient minimum contacts with New York and/or otherwise have intentionally availed
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PRODUCTIONS, INC.
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CERTIFICATION OF ARBITRATION ELIGIBILITY
Local Arbitration Rule 83.10 provides that with certain exceptions, actions seeking money damages only in an amount not in excess of $150,000,
exclusive of interest and costs, are eligible for compulsory arbitration. The amount of damages is presumed to be below the threshold amount unless a
certification to the contrary is filed.

I, C.K.Lee,counsel for Dego Tjokrondo, do hereby certify that the above captioned civil action is
ineligible for compulsory arbitration for the following reason(s):

monetary damages sought are in excess of $150,000, exclusive of interest and costs,

the complaint seeks injunctive relief,

0 the matter is otherwise ineligible for the following reason

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT FEDERAL RULES CIVIL PROCEDURE 7.1

Identify any parent corporation and any publicly held corporation that owns 10% or more or its stocks:

RELATED CASE STATEMENT (Section VIII on the Front of this Formi

Please list all cases that are arguably related pursuant to Division ofBusiness Rule 50.3.1 in Section VIE on the front ofthis form. Rule 50.3.1 (a)
provides that "A civil case is "related" to another civil case for purposes of this guideline when, because of the similarity of facts and legal issues or

because the cases arise from the same transactions or events, a substantial saving ofjudicial resources is likely to result from assigning both cases to the
same judge and magistrate judge." Rule 50.3.1 (b) provides that A civil case shall not be deemed "related" to another civil case merely because the civil
case: (A) involves identical legal issues, or (B) involves the same parties." Rule 50.3.1 (c) further provides that "Presumptively, and subject to the power
ofa judge to determine otherwise pursuant to paragraph (d), civil cases shall not be deemed to be "related" unless both cases are still pending before the
court."

NY-E DIVISION OF BUSINESS RULE 50.1(d)(2)

1.) Is the civil action being filed in the Eastern District removed from a New York State Court located in Nassau or Suffolk
County: No

2.) Ifyou answered "no" above:
a) Did the events or omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in Nassau or Suffolk
County? No

b) Did the events of omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in the Eastern
District? Yes

If your answer to question 2 (b) is "No, does the defendant (or a majority of the defendants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau or

Suffolk County, or, in an interpleader action, does the claimant (or a majority of the claimants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau
or Suffolk County?

(Note: A corporation shall be considered a resident of the County in which it has the most significant contacts).

BAR ADMISSION

I am currently admitted in the Eastern District ofNew York and currently a member in good standing ofthe bar of this court.
MI Yes p No

Are you currently the subject of any disciplinary action (s) in this or any other state or federal court?

p Yes (If yes, please explain) IM No

I certify thi

Signature:

e accuracy of all info i sri clio. bove.


